IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CORNELIUS RAY LEWIS,

Petitioner,

vs.

CASE NO. 77,120

SID J.

JAN 22 1991

Dennity Clenk.

OURT

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

PETITIONER'S INITIAL BRIEF ON MERITS

LAURA E. KEENE Florida Bar No. 312835 Beroset & Keene 417 East Zaragoza Street Pensacola, Florida 32501 Phone: (904) 438-3111 Attorney for Petitioner

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Petitioner, CORNELIUS RAY LEWIS, was the Defendant in the Trial Court and the Appellant below. Respondent, State of Florida, was the prosecution in the Trial Court and the Appellee in the District Court. The parties shall be referred to as "Petitioner" and "Respondent" respectively in this Brief.

References to the Record on Appeal will be by use of the symbol "R" followed by the appropriate page numbers in parenthesis. All emphasis shall be in the original unless otherwise noted. The District Court's Opinion is reported as <u>Lewis v. State</u>, 15 FLW D2863 (November 3, 1990).

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Petitioner was convicted after trial of two counts of lewd and lascivious assault upon a child and five counts of sexual activity with a child less than 18 years of age while standing in a position of familial or custodial authority. Petitioner appealed his conviction and 40 year guideline sentence alleging that the Trial Court had improperly restricted Petitioner's ability to establish bias, prejudice or motive through cross-examination of the victim, and further on the basis that the State had presented insufficient evidence to support Petitioner's conviction as to each count charged.

The District Court of Appeal, First District, affirmed the Trial Court's Order Denying Petitioner's Motion for New Trial and the Order of Final Judgment but certified as being of great public importance the following question:

> UNDER THE SIXTH AMENDMENT TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION AND MARR v. STATE, 494 So.2d 1139 (FLA. 1986), IS AN ALLEGED VICTIM'S PRIOR SEXUAL ACTIVITY WITH A THIRD PERSON IRRELEVANT FOR DETERMINING THE GUILT OF THE ACCUSED, WHERE THE DEFENDANT SOUGHT TO DEVELOP AS DEFENSE THEORY THAT Α THE VICTIM ACCUSED THE DEFENDANT IN ORDER TO PREVENT THE VICTIM'S MOTHER FROM DISCOVERING THAT THE VICTIM HAD BEEN SEXUALLY ACTIVE WITH THE THIRD PERSON?

Petitioner timely filed his Notice to Invoke the jurisdiction of this Court December 14, 1990, and this appeal follows.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

The alleged victim in this case is Petitioner's stepdaughter who was 15 years of age when the charged offenses allegedly occurred. The victim testified that Petitioner engaged in sexual activity with the victim beginning June 29, 1988, and continuing until October 24, 1988, when the victim reported the matter to her grandmother. The theory of the defense was that the victim had fabricated her accusations against Petitioner in order to conceal an elicit sexual relationship she had engaged in with her Petitioner sought to establish through crossboyfriend. examination of the victim that she began to have sexual relations with her boyfriend in May, 1988; that Petitioner discovered some letters that the victim had written to her boyfriend concerning her desire to have sexual intercourse with the boyfriend; that as the result of discovering the letters Petitioner placed the victim on restriction and scheduled an appointment for the victim to be examined by a gynecologist; that the victim denied that she had been sexually active with the boyfriend; that the victim was concerned that when she went to the gynecologist her sexual activity with her boyfriend would be discovered; and that immediately prior to the appointment with the gynecologist the victim made her first allegations against Petitioner. (R-59, 53, 60, 46)

The victim's pretrial deposition and the victim's proffered testimony at trial revealed that Petitioner would have been able to establish these facts through cross-examination of the victim. (R-59, 53, 60, 46) This testimony would have provided a basis for Petitioner to have argued his theory of defense to the jury had Petitioner been allowed to establish these facts.

The alleged victim, The Barry testified that she began living with her mother and Petitioner at the end of August, 1986. (R-42) She stated that when she first moved into Petitioner's home she and Petitioner got along "pretty good" but that their relationship began to change around December of 1987 because she thought that Petitioner wanted to have sexual relations with her. (R-43) MS. Berefitestified that she and Petitioner engaged in oral sex on June 29, 1988, and that also on that occasion Petitioner penetrated her vagina with his finger. (R-44, 45) MS. B further testified that she and Petitioner engaged in sexual intercourse on approximately ten occasions, but could not relate specific times, dates, or places in regard to these alleged activities. (R-45, 46)She stated that this activity ceased around mid-October, 1988, and that she made her first report to the police on October 24, 1988. (R-46) MS. Enconceded that when she first made her report to the police in October she indicated that the activity between she and Petitioner began in August or September, but later

changed her testimony to state that the activity began June 29, 1988, after having her memory refreshed. (R-48)

On cross-examination MS. Boostated that she began to see her boyfriend, John MS. Boostated that she began She further stated that her relationship with Petitioner and her mother was "pretty good" until the spring of 1988. (R-53) After beginning her relationship with her boyfriend, Hornow MS. Boost testified that Petitioner and her mother spoke to her about certain letters MS. Boost had written to her boyfriend. (R-53) It was at that time that Petitioner and MS. Hornow mother placed MS. Boost on restriction and forbade her from seeing Hornow again. (R-53)

MS. Beneficient that she was unhappy about being placed on restriction and being precluded from seeing her boyfriend, and was further unhappy about the fact that she had asked for a car and was told by Petitioner and her mother that she would not be able to obtain a car. (R-54) She further testified that when she decided to come forward with her accusations against Petitioner that she went to her grandmother, whom she had previously asked to live with but whom had refused to allow her to do so. At the time of her accusations, MS. Beer again asked to live with her grandmother who again refused. (R-54) She also testified that she had earlier told authorities that she was sexually abused on four occasions, which testimony changed at trial to ten occasions or more. (R-56) She also admitted that she had

discussed her accusations against Petitioner prior to trial with her sister, with whom she was living at the time of trial. (R-58)

At the conclusion of this testimony the trial jury was removed from the courtroom and defense counsel was allowed to present a proffer as to MS. Burner relationship with her boyfriend, Hornow (R-59) At that time MS. Burner testified that she had begun to have intercourse with Hornow as early as May, 1988, and had subsequently had intercourse with him on numerous occasions. (R-59) MS. Burnerfurther admitted, writing a letter to; her boyfriend in which she indicated she wished to have further sexual relations with him, which letters were discovered by Petitioner after which Petitioner advised MS. Burner should not write such things. (R-59)

During the proffer MS. How also testified that she went to see a gynecologist because Petitioner asked her to do so. (R-60) This appointment occurred October 31, 1988. (R-61) MS. Been testified that this examination occurred after she reported the alleged sexual activity between herself and Petitioner to the police. (R-61) She also admitted lying to her mother when her mother asked her if she was sexually active with Herman. (R-61)

At the conclusion of this testimony counsel for Petitioner requested that such testimony be presented to the jury as it was relevant to show MS. B**arrier** motive, reason or

opportunity to accuse Petitioner of the charges indicated in Petitioner argued that MS. Berne had the Information. admitted to having a sexual relationship with her boyfriend in May before any type of sexual activity had allegedly occurred with Petitioner according to MS. B own testimony. From the instigation of her sexual relationship with her boyfriend that relationship continued. (R-61) Petitioner further submitted that as Petitioner's right to full and fair cross-examination is guaranteed by the Sixth Amendment of the United States Constitution the proffered testimony went directly to motive and opportunity to fabricate or lie, and thus should be admitted. (R-62 through 65) Petitioner argued to the Trial Court that the alleged victim's prior sexual conduct was relevant to show her bias or motive in fabricating the allegations and that if such evidence does show bias or motive to lie, no matter how small, then it is a question for the jury to determine how much weight to give that evidence. (R-66) The Trial Court refused to admit the evidence.

The Trial Court having refused to allow Petitioner to fully cross-examine the victim on these matters, Petitioner was precluded from effectively presenting his theory of defense to the jury. Petitioner asserted at trial and on appeal that the Trial Court precluding this cross-examination prevented Petitioner from presenting his defense, which was that the victim had fabricated her

accusation in order to conceal and preserve her sexual relationship with her boyfriend by means of accusing Petitioner for the physical evidence which would have been revealed by the gynecological examination.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

It is Petitioner's Petition that the Trial Court improperly precluded Petitioner's relevant theory of defense by limiting the cross-examination of the Respondent's primary witness, MS. The Petitioner attempted to establish for the jury why MS. Been would falsely accuse Petitioner of sexual misconduct, as charged in the Amended Information. It was Petitioner's theory of defense that the victim fabricated the charges against Petitioner because she knew that her mother (and stepfather, Petitioner) would be upset if they discovered MS. Been was sexually active with her boyfriend. In an effort to preserve her illicit sexual relationship with her boyfriend MS. Been felt compelled to fabricate the allegations of sexual misconduct against Petitioner.

Although the Sixth Amendment to the Constitution guarantees the right of an accused in a criminal prosecution to confront the witnesses against him, in this case Petitioner was not allowed to cross-examine the victim on a specific issue of her prior sexual activity with her boyfriend, thereby precluding Petitioner's Sixth Amendment rights. Such testimony might have allowed the jury to draw the reasonable inference that the victim's motivation in bringing charges against Petitioner was her fear of her mother[‡] discovering that she had been sexually active with her boyfriend. The jury was never allowed to hear the specific

reason that Petitioner was asserting as a basis for the victim's testimony.

The Trial Court improperly precluded a relevant theory of defense by limiting Petitioner's cross-examination. Therefore, the certified question should be answered in the negative and this cause remanded for a new trial.

ARGUMENT

UNDER THE SIXTH AMENDMENT TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION IN MARR v. STATE, 494 So.2d 1139 (Fla. 1986), IS AN ALLEGED VICTIM'S PRIOR SEXUAL ACTIVITY WITH A THIRD PERSON IRRELEVANT FOR DETERMINING THE GUILT OF THE ACCUSED, WHERE THE DEFENDANT SOUGHT TO DEVELOP AS THEORY THAT THE DEFENSE Α VICTIM ACCUSED THE DEFENDANT IN ORDER TO PREVENT THE VICTIM'S MOTHER FROM DISCOVERING THAT THE VICTIM HAD BEEN SEXUALLY ACTIVE WITH THE THIRD PERSON?

theory of Petitioner's defense was that The MS. Being had fabricated her accusations of illicit sexual contact between herself and Petitioner in order to conceal the sexual relationship she had been engaged in with her boyfriend for a period of some months. Petitioner attempted to demonstrate through cross-examination of MS. Bernethat she began to have sexual relations with her boyfriend in May, 1988; that several months after this relationship began Petitioner and his wife discovered letters written by MS. Being to her boyfriend expressing her desire to have sexual relations with the boyfriend; that upon discovery of the letters Petitioner and his wife punished MS. Berny by placing her on restriction, refusing to allow her to continue to see her boyfriend, and by scheduling an appointment for MS. Build with a gynecologist; that MS. Build denied she had been sexually involved with her boyfriend when asked by her

mother; that MS. B**MM** was afraid that the gynecological examination would reveal that she had in fact been sexually active; and that immediately prior to the gynecological appointment MS. B**MM** made the accusations against Petitioner. The proffered testimony of MS. B**MM** as well as the pretrial deposition indicate that all of these facts could have been established by cross-examination of MS. B**MM** by Petitioner had Petitioner been allowed to pursue this line of questioning. Upon presentation, Petitioner would have been able to argue his theory of defense to the jury.

To the contrary, the Trial Court limited Petitioner's cross-examination as to these issues to the following:

- "Q. Now, during the time that you were living with Ray Lewis and your mother, things were going along pretty good until about the spring of 1988 weren't they?
- A. Yes.
- Q. And isn't it a fact that you started to see a young man about that particular time by the name of Jack Harmon
- A. I started seeing him January.
- Q. January of 1988?
- A. I started going with him in January.
- Q. And your parents talked to you about some letters you wrote to him?
- A. Yes.

Q. Didn't they?

A. Yes.

- Q. They put you on restriction and told you not to see him, didn't they, Ray Lewis and your mother?
- A. They never told me not to see him.
- Q. They told you they didn't want you to see him?
- A. Yes.
- Q. And you were placed on restriction?
- A. Yes.
- Q. And you weren't happy about that, were you?
- A. No. (R-53)

The cross-examination allowed can be interpreted as providing a basis for arguing that MS. B**MM** had accused Petitioner in response to being placed on restriction but was inadequate to allow presentation of Petitioner's actual theory of defense, which was that MS. B**MM** had made her accusations in order to conceal and preserve the relationship she had already initiated with her boyfriend which she feared would be revealed by the gynecological examination.

In its Opinion the District Court relies upon <u>Floyd</u> <u>v. State</u>, 503 So.2d 956 (Fla. 1st DCA 1987), wherein the Defendant complained that he had been deprived of his constitutional rights to present a defense by prohibiting his examination of the victim about an incident of consensual sexual activity between the victim and her boyfriend. The victim was punished severely for this sexual activity on the same day she reported she had been sexually battered by the The Floyd Court affirmed the Trial Court's Defendant. decision to permit the Defendant to introduce evidence that on the day the victim accused her father of sexual battery she had been whipped by her mother because she had her boyfriend in the house with her. The Court found that admission of this evidence allowed the Defendant to demonstrate to the jury that the victim accused him of the crime because she was angry about being whipped and that the Defendant's right to present a defense was not precluded by exclusion of the testimony concerning the victim's prior sexual activity with a third person.

In the case at bar, the District Court concluded that the Trial Court struck the proper balance between protecting Petitioner's right to show the bias of the victim and pertinent case law holding that a sexual battery victim should be able to come forward and testify against the alleged perpetrator without having her private sexual life become the focus of the trial, citing <u>Marr v. State</u>, 494 So.2d 1139 (Fla. 1986). However, the First District overlooked the fact that the admitted cross-examination failed to develop the fact that MS. Berne fabricated her accusations in order to conceal and preserve her sexual

activity with her boyfriend which would be revealed by the examination absent the accusations against Petitioner, rather than the fact that MS. BURK had made her accusations in response to being placed on restriction.

The Sixth Amendment the United to States Constitution guarantees a criminal defendant the right to a full and fair opportunity to cross-examine witnesses in order to show their bias or motive to be untruthful. Davis v. Alaska, 415 U.S. 308, 94 S.Ct. 1105, 39 L.Ed. 2d 347 (1974). Additionally, Courts have long recognized that "the exposure of a witness' motivation in testifying is a proper and important function of the constitutionally protected right of cross-examination" (citation omitted) Davis at 316-317, 94 The limited nature of Petitioner's s.Ct. at 1110. cross-examination as dictated by the Trial Court clearly his constitutional right to restricted confront and cross-examine a witness in order to establish possible bias or motive to lie.

In <u>Olden v. Kentucky</u>, U.S. , 109 So.Ct. 480, 102 L.Ed 2d 513 (1988), the United States Supreme Court reversed the Trial Court's refusal to permit a black defendant in a kidnapping, rape and sodomy trial to cross-examine a white complainant regarding her cohabitation with a black boyfriend on the basis that such refusal violated the Defendant's Sixth Amendment right to confrontation of witnesses. The Court held that such

evidence was relevant to the Defendant's claim that he and the complainant engaged in consensual sexual acts and that the complainant, out of fear of jeopardizing her relationship with her boyfriend, lied when she told her boyfriend she had been raped. The <u>Olden</u> Court cited <u>Davis v. Alaska</u>, supra, noting that therein the Court emphasized that "the exposure of a witness' motivation in testifying is a proper and important function of the constitutionally protected right of cross-examination".

Likewise, the Olden Court cited Delaware v. Van Arsdall, 475 U.S. 673, 106 S.Ct. 1431, 89 L.Ed. 2d 674 (1986) stating that "a criminal defendant states a violation of the confrontation clause by showing that he was prohibited from engaging in otherwise appropriate cross-examination designed to show a prototypical form of bias on the part of the witness, and thereby 'to expose to the jury the facts from which jurors...could appropriately draw inferences relating to the reliability of the witnesses'". In reversing the Kentucky Court of Appeals, the Olden Court noted that the Defendant had consistently asserted that he and the alleged victim engaged in consensual sexual acts and that the victim, out of fear of jeopardizing her relationship with a third party, lied when she told that third party she had been raped, and that she had continued to lie ever since. The Court stated that it was clear that a reasonable jury could have received a significantly different impression of the

victim's credibility had the Defendant been permitted to pursue his proposed line of cross-examination.

The First District has previously addressed the right of a criminal defendant to fully develope the motives and biases of State witnesses to testify falsely. In Taylor v. State, 455 So.2d 562 (Fla. 1st DCA 1976), the Defendant, an inmate in the Florida State Prison, was charged with the sexual battery of a fellow inmate. On cross-examination at trial, defense counsel attempted to question the alleged victim concerning past complaints of other alleged sexual The defense counsel's theory was that the alleged attacks. victim had made previous sexual abuse complaints in order to The State objected to this line of get better treatment. questioning and was sustained. The First District on appeal reversed the Defendant's conviction for sexual battery holding that the Trial Court had erred in sustaining the defense State's objections to counsel's attempted cross-examination of the alleged victim because "it is well settled that a defendant, as a matter of right, may cross-examine a witness for impeachment purposes by inquiry which could possibly show a motive for the witness to be untruthful".

In <u>Lavette v. State</u>, 442 So.2d 265 (Fla. 1st DCA 1983), the First District stated that the defense should be allowed wide latitude to demonstrate bias or possible motive for a witness' testimony, and further that any evidence

tending to establish that a witness is appearing for the State for any reason other than to tell the truth should not be kept from the jury, citing <u>Nelson v. State</u>, 395 So.2d 176 (Fla. 1st DCA 1980) and <u>Holt v. State</u>, 378 So.2d 106 (Fla. 5th DCA 1980).

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