IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

SID J HITE PEB: 26 1991 LERK, SUPREME COURT By. Deputy Clerk

CORNELIUS RAY LEWIS,

Petitioner,

v.

CASE NO. 77,120

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

### RESPONDENT'S BRIEF ON THE MERITS

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

ATTORNEY GENERAL CYPSY BAILEY

ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL FLORIDA BAR NO. 0797200

WENDY S. MORRIS LEGAL INTERN

DEPARTMENT OF LEGAL AFFAIRS THE CAPITOL TALLAHASSEE, FL 32399-1050 (904) 488-0600

COUNSEL FOR RESPONDENT

#

### PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Petitioner, the State of Florida, the prosecuting authority in the trial court and appellee below, will be referred to in this brief as the state. Respondent, Cornelius Ray Lewis, the defendant in the trial court and appellant below, will be referred to in this brief as respondent. References to the appendix will be noted by the symbol "A" and followed by the appropriate page number(s) in parentheses.

## STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION

discretionary The Court of Florida has Supreme jurisdiction to review a decision of a district court of appeal that passes upon a question certified to be of great public importance. Fla.Const. Art. v, §3(b)(3), Fla.R.App.P. 9.030(a)(2)(A)(v).

## STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

÷.

.

Respondent accepts Petitioner's statement of the case and facts as reasonably accurate.

#### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

A victim's prior sexual activity with a third person is irrelevant for determining the Petitioner's guilt, under the Sixth Amendment to the United States Constitution and <u>Marr</u> v. State, infra.

Although the Sixth Amendment guarantees the accused a right to confront the witnesses against him, this right is not absolute and may bow to accommodate other interests in the trial process.

The Florida Legislature in enacting our rape shield statute has recognized society's interest in encouraging victim's of sexual assault to come forward and report the crimes. The statute bars the admission of a victim's prior sexual history in every trial, except where the evidence tends to show that the accused is not the perpetrator of the crime or where the defense is consent of the victim.

Noting that the rape shield statute is an explicit statement of the rule of relevancy in sexual assault cases, the <u>Marr</u> Court held that a victim's sexual activity with third persons is irrelevant to the ultimate issue of the defendant's guilt. Like the defendant in <u>Marr</u>, the Petitioner did not fall within an exception to the statute, attempted to develop a fabrication theory at trial, and demonstrated possible victim bias without delving into the victim's prior sexual activity. Thus, the instant victim's

- 4 -

prior sexual history likewise is irrelevant to determining the Petitioner's guilt.

#### ARGUMENT

UNDER THE SIXTH AMENDMENT TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION AND MARR V. STATE, 1986), 1139 494 SO.2D (FLA. IS AN ALLEGED VICTIM'S PRIOR SEXUAL ACTIVITY IRRELEVANT WITH Α THIRD PERSON FOR DETERMINING THE GUILT OF THE ACCUSED, WHERE THE DEFENDANT SOUGHT TO DEVELOP AS A DEFENSE THEORY THAT THE VICTIM ACCUSED THE DEFENDANT IN ORDER TO PREVENT THE VICTIM'S MOTHER FROM DISCOVERING THAT THE VICTIM HAD BEEN SEXUALLY ACTIVE WITH THE THIRD PERSON?

The victim in this case is Petitioner's stepdaughter (R The victim testified on direct examination that she 42). began living with her mother and stepfather in August 1986 (R 42). In December 1987, when the victim was only 15 years old, Petitioner first approached the victim indicating that he wanted to have sexual relations with her (R 43). The victim refused his advances (R 43). On June 29, 1988, the Petitioner again approached the victim, this time forcing her to have sexual intercourse with him in her bedroom while her mother was at work (R 45). The victim did not report Petitioner's actions to her mother, fearing that her mother would not believe her (R 47). Eventually realizing that the sexual abuse would continue if she did not report it, the victim turned to her grandmother for help, telephoning her from school and reporting the sexual abuse on October 24, 1988 (R 47).

On cross-examination of the victim, defense counsel elicited information that the victim started to go out with a young man in January 1988; that the victim's mother and

- 6 -

Petitioner came across letters the victim wrote to her boyfriend; that the victim was "talked to" about the letters; that the victim was restricted from seeing her boyfriend due to the content of the letters; that the victim disliked being on restriction; and, that the victim wanted a car when she turned 16, but was told she would not receive one (R 53-54).

Defense counsel also made a proffer outside the presence of the jury during the victim's cross-examination The testimony indicated that the victim first (R 58). engaged in sexual intercourse with her boyfriend in May 1988; that the victim wrote a letter to her boyfriend which stated that she wanted to "fuck" him; that Petitioner wanted the victim to see а doctor to be placed on oral contraceptives; that the victim was not bothered about going to see a doctor; and, that the victim was not concerned whether her mother knew she was sexually active, although the victim did deny being sexually active when questioned by her mother (R 59-61; 205).

The prosecutor objected to this line of questioning, pointing out that the proffered testimony:

[was] not relevant because [defense counsel] already brought out the fact that there was a boyfriend and [the victim's mother and appellant] didn't approve of the boyfriend, and they put her on restriction, and she wrote a letter. She wanted a car, and they wouldn't let her have a car. We wasn't getting along [with them]. She already has all this motive to fabricate and all this opportunity and all this has already been brought out and, therefore, this will not establish motive. It's just an attack on her character.

And then the emphasis on the word she used -- because she used the F word, what's that got to do with anything? That's just a further attack on her character to try to make her appear to be a girl of ill repute who uses filthy language. That's just another attack on her character. It's already been brought out about the boyfriend, the fact [her mother and appellant] didn't want her to see him. They put her on restriction and she couldn't get a car. They already have a motive.

So, therefore, even if it were relevant, it's outweighed by the prejudicial effect. It's just an attack on her character to try to make her look bad. .

So I think it's nothing but to try to portray this little girl as a loose girl who uses dirty language and who sleeps with her boyfriend. They already have their motive well established. They don't need this further testimony. I would object. (R 63-64).

The trial court responded:

÷

[I]t does appear that there has been adequate opportunity for the defendant to establish any motive for bias on the part of the complaining witness in this matter by simply showing that there has been a relationship with a friend. There has been established a fact that the family was galvanized against her and her activities. The family had chastised her, if you will, for writing letters to her friend. And even in the Marr case I believe when the Court was

fixed with the confrontation clause and the rape shield statute, I believe that even in that matter that the Court found proper balance between [the] establishing the bias and motive on the [the] complaining witness part of having without to into the go complexities of sexual intimacies with the third person.

So based on the fact that [defense counsel] already established . . . reasons for bias and motive on the part of the complaining witness, the Court will not allow this particular proffered testimony to go to the jury this morning. (R 68-69).

In its opinion, the First District affirmed the trial court's decision to exclude the proffered testimony and denial of Petitioner's motion for a new trial. The District Court concluded that the trial court struck the proper balance between protecting Petitioner's right to show the bias of the complaining witness and pertinent caselaw holding that a sexual battery victim should be able to come forward and testify against the alleged perpetrator without having her private sexual life become the focus of the trial.

In his brief, Petitioner concedes that the permitted cross-examination can be interpreted as providing a basis for arguing that the victim fabricated the charged against Petitioner in response to being placed on restriction. Petitioner states, though, the actual defense theory was that the victim fabricated her accusations in order to conceal and preserve the sexual relationship she had already

- 9 -

initiated with her boyfriend which she feared would be revealed by the gynecological examination. Petitioner asserts that the proffered testimony of the victim was relevant in proving this theory. The State, however, contends that the victim's prior sexual activity with a third person is irrelevant for determining the guilt of the accused, under both the Sixth Amendment to the United States Constitution and <u>Marr v. State</u>, 494 So.2d 1139 (Fla. 1986).

Amendment federal Although the Sixth to the constitution guarantees the right of an accused in a criminal trial to be confronted with the witnesses against him, Davis v. Alaska, 415 U.S. 308, 315, 94 S.Ct. 1105, , 39 L.Ed.2d 347, 353 (1974), this right is not inviolate. Alford v. United States, 282 U.S. 687, 694, 51 S.Ct. 218, 220, 75 L.Ed. 624, 629 (1931). The Sixth Amendment right to confrontation requires only that the permitted to introduce all relevant accused be and admissible evidence. U.S. v. Nixon, 418 U.S. 683, 711, 94 S.Ct. 3090, 41 L.Ed.2d 1039 (1974). The Confrontation Clause guarantees an opportunity for effective crossexamination, not cross-examination that is effective in whatever way and to whatever extent the defense might wish. Delaware v. Van Arsdall, 475 U.S. 673, 679, 106 S.Ct. 1431, 1435 (1986). The right to confront and to cross-examine is not absolute and may, in appropriate cases, bow to accommodate other legal interests in the criminal trial Chambers v. Mississippi, 410 U.S. 284, 295, 93 process. S.Ct. 1038, 1046, 35 L.Ed.2d 297, \_\_\_\_ (1973).

One example of Sixth Amendment accommodation of other legal interests in the criminal trial process comes in the form of rape shield statutes. In response to criticism of rape evidence laws, the United States Congress and most state legislatures have enacted rape shield laws to restrict a criminal defendant's ability to admit evidence of a sexual assault victim's past sexual history. <u>See</u> Tanford & Bocchino, <u>Rape Victim Shield Laws and the Sixth Amendment</u>, 128 U. Pa. L. Rev. 544, 551 (1980). In <u>Bell v. Harrison</u>, 670 F.2d 656, 658 (6th Cir. 1982), the Court wrote:

> The rationale behind these statutes is that evidence of a rape victim's prior sexual activity is of dubious probative relevance value and and is highly embarrassing and prejudicial. Often such evidence has been used to harass the prosecuting victim. Sponsors of these statutes assert that they encourage victims of sexual assault to report the crimes without fear of having their past sexual history exposed to the public.

There can be little doubt that Florida's rape shield statute, Fla.Stat. §794.022 (1987), represents an explicit legislative decision to eliminate trial practices which may have frustrated society's vital interest in the prosecution of sexual crimes.

In <u>Marr v. State</u>, <u>supra</u>, this Court held that a victim's prior sexual activity was inadmissible under Florida's Rape Shield Statute to bolster a defense theory that the victim fabricated her accusations of sexual battery against the defendant because of personal animosity between the defendant and the victim's boyfriend. The State presented only the testimony of the victim in support of its case. <u>Id</u>. at 1139. At trial, the defendant denied any sexual contact with the victim, and proffered testimony relating to the sexual intimacy of the victim and her boyfriend to show the victim's bias. <u>Id</u>. at 1143. The trial court excluded the proffered evidence. <u>Id</u>. at 1142.

Interpreting Florida's rape shield statute, the Marr Court held that the depth of the victim's relationship with her boyfriend was irrelevant to the ultimate issue of the defendant's guilt or innocence. Id. at 1143. The Marr Court noted several reasons supporting its decision. First, the court stated that the rape shield statute was an explicit statement of the rule of relevancy and that under the statute a victim's sexual activity with anyone other than the accused was generally irrelevant for determining Id. at 1142. the quilt of the accused. The court observed that the victim's prior sexual activity with a third person was relevant only when such evidence tended to show that the accused was not the perpetrator of the crime, or when the defense was consent of the victim. Id. The Court noted the policy reasons supporting the statute, stating:

> It appears that these sections' underpinnings are based on the idea that a sexual battery victim should be able to come forward and testify against the alleged perpetrator without having the victim's prior sexual activities become the focal point of the trial, rather than the guilt or innocence of the accused.

Id. at 1142-43.

Second, the court pointed out that the defendant's cross-examination was not completely foreclosed: The defendant, in fact, was able to show that the victim and her boyfriend were in love, thereby demonstrating possible bias of the victim without delving into the couple's sexual relations. Id. at 1143. Third, the court stated that the defense fully explored the incidents leading to the animosity between the defendant and the victim's boyfriend. Fourth, the court stated that the defendant's Sixth Id. Amendment rights under Davis, supra, were not violated by the limitation of his cross-examination. Id. The Marr Court acknowledged that the right to show a witness's bias is constitutionally mandated, under Davis, supra. Id. However, the Marr Court indicated that Davis was clearly distinguishable, as the defense counsel in that case was barred from using the only method available to show a witness's bias, i.e., protected juvenile criminal records. Id.

In <u>Floyd v. State</u>, 503 So.2d 956, 957 (Fla. 1st DCA 1987), the First District held a victim's sexual activity with her boyfriend inadmissible. The defendant sought to develop as a defense theory that the victim fabricated sexual battery charges against her father because she was angry at her parents for punishing her. <u>Id</u>. The defendant proffered evidence about a specific instance of consensual

- 13 -

sexual activity between the victim and her boyfriend for which she was whipped. <u>Id</u>. The <u>Floyd</u> Court held the trial court properly excluded the evidence relating to sexual activity. <u>Id</u>. Citing <u>Marr</u>, <u>supra</u>, in support of its decision, the <u>Floyd</u> Court noted that the trial court did not foreclose cross-examination altogether, because it permitted the defendant to introduce evidence that the victim had been whipped by her mother for having her boyfriend in the house on the day she brought the charges of sexual battery against her father. <u>Id</u>.

Other jurisdictions have considered a defendant's Sixth Amendment rights in conjunction with a State Rape Shield Statute, and have held the victim's prior sexual activity with a third person irrelevant for determining the guilt of the accused, where the defense sought to show victim bias. In Commonwealth v. Elder, 389 Mass. 743, , 452 N.E.2d 1104, 1109 (1983), the Massachusetts Supreme Court held that the trial judge properly excluded evidence of the victim's prior sexual conduct. The defendant sought to introduce evidence supporting the defense theory that the victim fabricated rape charges against him to prevent the defendant from interfering with her intimate relations with her boyfriend. Id. The trial court allowed testimony indicating that the victim and her boyfriend were in love and permitted evidence of the closeness of their relationship, but excluded testimony regarding the couple's sexual relations. Id. As the defendant was able to establish bias without

testimony relating to the victim's sexual history, the court concluded that exclusion of the evidence properly balanced the policies underlying the rape shield statute as well as the confrontation clause. <u>Id</u>. at 1110. The Court stated, where evidence of bias is available by other means, the exclusion of prior sexual history relevant to a showing of the victim's bias does not raise serious constitutional problems. <u>Id</u>.

In State v. Lalone, 437 N.W.2d 611, 612 (Mich. 1989), the Supreme Court of Michigan held that the trial court properly excluded evidence of a victim's sexual history. The defendant was convicted of criminal sexual conduct against his fourteen-year-old stepdaughter. Id. at 617. The defendant maintained that the victim fabricated the retaliation for assault charges in the defendant's sexual punishment of her alleged misconduct with neighborhood youths. Id.

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